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For their complaint against the defendants, Plaintiffs State of Arizona and the Gila
River Indian Community allege and state:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. The State of Arizona and the Gila River Indian Community (“Community”)
bring this action under the 2002 Tohono O’odham Nation-State of Arizona Gaming
Compact (“Compact”) (attached as Exhibit A) and the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act
(“IGRA”), 25 U.S.C. §2710(d)(7)(A)(ii), to enjoin the Tohono O’odham Nation (the
“Nation”) from engaging in gaming activity in violation of the Compact.

2. The Compact, which incorporates by reference numerous provisions of
IGRA, limits “Class 111" gaming (casino-type gaming, as defined by IGRA) to gaming
facilities located on the “Indian Lands of the Tribe.” Compact § 3(j)(1). In addition, the
Compact provides that “[g]Jaming Activity on lands acquired after the enactment” of IGRA
October 17, 1988 “shall be authorized only in accordance with 25 U.S.C. § 2719”; that
section of IGRA in turn prohibits gaming on lands taken into trust after 1988, subject to
certain exceptions. Further, Compact 8 3(p) prohibits the Nation from engaging in “any
Class 11l gaming not specifically authorized in this Section 3.” In sum, the Compact
explicitly prohibits gaming on lands acquired after 1988 unless those lands qualify under
an IGRA exception in § 2719.

3. The Nation has repudiated these obligations and has a definite and concrete
plan for violating them within as little as 21 days by beginning unauthorized gaming
activities on a parcel of land in suburban Phoenix. Its announcements and publicity
regarding these plans have already destabilized the political relationships among tribes and
between those tribes and the State that are embodied in the Compact and in other identical
Compacts with other tribes.

4. In January 2009, the Nation announced that it owned a parcel of land in
Glendale, Arizona (the “Glendale Property”), and that it planned to build a new casino (its
fourth) on the parcel, which is approximately 160 miles from its tribal headquarters and

over 100 miles north of its nearest existing casino. It applied to the Department of the

1635379 2
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Interior to have the land taken into trust for its benefit by the United States pursuant to the
Gila Bend Reservation Replacement Act, Pub. L. No. 99-503, 100 Stat. 1798 (1986), and to
have Interior declare that the land meets one of the IGRA exceptions, for land taken into
trust as part of a “settlement of a land claim.”

5. In July 2009, in an effort to accelerate the building of the casino and to
prevent Interior from determining whether the chosen site for the casino was permissible
under IGRA, the Nation informed Interior that it believed that a gaming determination was
not necessary for the land to be taken into trust, and it “withdrew” its request for a gaming-
eligibility determination under IGRA. Interior acquiesced and issued a decision on July 23,
2010 (the “Parcel 2 decision™) stating its intention to take Parcel 2 into trust without
making the gaming determination required under IGRA.

6. On September 16 and September 21, 2010, respectively, the Community and
the City of Glendale, Arizona filed suit in the United States District Court for the District
of Arizona to prevent the Secretary from acquiring Parcel 2 in trust for the Nation on the
grounds that, inter alia, the Parcel 2 decision violated the Administrative Procedure Act by
failing to include a determination under IGRA regarding whether the land is eligible for
gaming, and by failing to comply with the provisions of the Gila Bend Act. Soon
thereafter, a group of individuals filed a similar complaint that was consolidated with the
prior actions. The Nation was allowed to intervene as a defendant. Leaders of the Arizona
legislature were allowed to intervene as plaintiffs, and the Governor of Arizona was
allowed to appear as amicus curiae in support of plaintiffs. The State of Arizona recently
moved to intervene as a plaintiff, and that pending motion is not opposed by either the
federal government defendants or the Nation.

7. The plaintiffs in those pending actions seek a declaration that the Parcel 2
decision is arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and otherwise contrary to law,
as well as an injunction to prevent Interior and the United States of America from

accepting Parcel 2 in trust.

1635379 3
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8. During the pendency of that litigation, the Nation has stated publicly that it
intends to conduct gaming operations on the parcel as soon as it is in trust without seeking
any determination that the land is eligible for gaming.

9. In recent pleadings in that litigation, the United States claimed for the first
time that an IGRA determination on the gaming eligibility of Parcel 2 need not ever be
issued by Interior. Moreover, the United States has stated that during the pendency of that
litigation, it may still take the land into trust, and thereby effectively allow the Nation to
begin gaming, with only 21 days advance notice. Therefore, absent an injunction, illegal
gaming on Parcel 2 is imminent.

10. The United States has stated that one reason it should not be required to
determine whether Parcel 2 is eligible for gaming is that “States have the ability to seek to
enjoin activities conducted in violation of a Tribal-State compact” by invoking 25 U.S.C. §
2710(d)(7)(A)(ii). Case No. 2:10-cv-01993-DGC, Doc. 117, at 12.

11.  This complaint seeks to enjoin the Nation from conducting gaming activities
in violation of the Compact.

PARTIES

12.  The State of Arizona is a party to the Compact.

13. The Gila River Indian Community is a federally recognized Indian tribe
whose headquarters are at 525 W. Gu u Ki, Sacaton, Arizona 85247. The Community has
three casinos on its reservation lands in the Phoenix metropolitan area and has entered into
a gaming Compact with the State of Arizona that is identical to the Compact at issue here.

14.  Defendant Tohono O’odham Nation is a federally recognized Indian tribe
whose headquarters are in Sells, Arizona. The Nation has two casinos in the Tucson area
and a third casino in Why, Arizona.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

15. This Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal question

jurisdiction) and 25 U.S.C. § 2710(d)(7)(A)(ii) (jurisdiction over actions brought by States

or Indian tribes to enjoin gaming activity that would violate a Tribal-State Compact).

1635379 4
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16.  Venue in this Court is proper under 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(b)(2), because the
negotiation and signing of the Compact occurred in this federal district and the real
property that is the subject of the action is located in this federal district.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
l. BALLOT PROPOSITION 202

17.  IGRA provides that an Indian tribe may conduct Class Il gaming on its
Indian lands only if authorized pursuant to a Tribal-State Compact. On June 24, 1993, the
State of Arizona and the Nation entered into a compact authorizing gaming on the “Indian
Lands of the Tribe” at up to four locations. 1993 Compact § 3(j)(1).

18.  The 1993 Compact provides that “[g]Jaming Activity on lands acquired after
the enactment of the Act of [sic] October 17, 1988 [IGRA] shall be authorized only in
accordance with 25 U.S.C. § 2719.” 1993 Compact 3(j)(1).

19.  On August 18, 1993, Interior published in the Federal Register its approval of
the Compact, as required by IGRA.

20.  In 2000, three years before the scheduled expiration of the existing Arizona
Class Il Tribal State Gaming Compacts with various Arizona tribes, negotiations for new
gaming compacts began.

21.  Seventeen Arizona Indian tribes, including the Community and the Nation,
negotiated with then-Governor Jane Hull and the Arizona Department of Gaming regarding
material issues that would be a part of each compact between the State and the seventeen
tribes. The tribes viewed their public support as critical to voter approval for the compacts
in the initiative process.

22.  While it was anticipated that each Indian tribe would sign its own compact
with the State of Arizona, the material terms and conditions that would be in each compact
were negotiated as if it were one compact.

23.  After two years of negotiations, the State of Arizona and the seventeen tribes
reached agreement on the number of slot machines and the number and location of casinos

that would be authorized by the new Compacts. The seventeen tribes negotiated among

1635379 5
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themselves to determine how many casinos and machines each would be allocated from the
total.

24.  The new Compacts would increase the total number of permitted gaming
devices for each tribe but reduce the total number of authorized gaming facilities in the
State from 38 to 29. As in the 1993 compacts, gaming would not be allowed on any lands
acquired after October 17, 1988 except “in accordance with 25 U.S.C. 2719.” Compact
3()(1); see A.R.S. § 5-601.02(1)(6)(J)(1). These limits on the number and location of
casinos were a key part of the consideration bargained for by the State.

25.  This carefully constructed balance was embodied in Proposition 202, which
was approved by Arizona voters in November 2002.

26.  Proposition 202 was offered as a way to defeat authorization of racetrack-
based gaming (or “racinos”), the authorization of which was also on the ballot, as
Proposition 201.

27. In 2002, the seventeen tribes, including the Community and the Nation,
formed a coalition called “Arizonans for Fair Gaming and Indian Self Reliance” to urge
Arizona voters to approve Proposition 202 and reject Proposition 201.

28.  The 17-Tribe Coalition provided voters with a document called “Answers to

Common Questions” stating:

Q.  Will Proposition 202 allow Indian tribes to build casinos outside of tribal
lands?

A. No. The location of Indian gaming facilities is controlled by federal law—
not by state law. Under the federal Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA),
Indian gaming is generally limited to existing reservation lands established
before 1988.

Does Proposition 202 limit the numbers of tribal casinos in Arizona?

Yes. In fact, Proposition 202 reduces the number of authorized gaming
facilities on tribal land, and limits the number and proximity of facilities each
tribe may operate. Under Proposition 202, there will be no additional
facilities authorized in Phoenix, and only one additional facility
permitted in Tucson. As specified in the initiative, the number of facilities

1635379 6
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per tribe ranges between 1 and 4, and tribal casinos must be at least 1-1/2
miles apart. [Emphasis added.]

29. A notation of the face of this document stated that it was paid for with
“[m]ajor funding provided by Ak-Chin Indian Community, Gila River Indian Community,
Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, Tohono O’odham Nation and other Indian
tribes in Arizona.”

30.  The Nation’s present Chairman publicly supported Proposition 202 and urged
Arizona voters at a Town Hall Meeting in Tucson to cast their vote for approval. On
September 25, 2002, he argued that voters should choose Proposition 202 because it would
not “open gaming into cities.” He argued that opening gaming into cities would be
unacceptable, because “the citizens of Arizona have, repeatedly over the years, expressed
their desire to keep gaming on the reservation.”

31.  Then-Governor Jane Dee Hull campaigned in favor of Proposition 202 and
against Proposition 201. On the official Proposition 202 ballot, the Governor urged
Arizona voters to rely upon the balance struck. Governor Hull stated: “I strongly urge you
to vote “YES’ on Proposition 202, the *17 Tribe’ Initiative. Proposition 202 keeps casinos
limited to Indian reservations and limits the number of casinos on reservations . . .
Proposition 202 ensures that no new casinos will be built in the Phoenix metropolitan area
and only one in the Tucson area for at least 23 years. Proposition 202 keeps gaming on
Indian Reservations and does not allow it to move into our neighborhoods . . . Plain and
simple, this is the best gaming proposal for all Arizona citizens.”

32.  In its support for Proposition 202, the Nation both expressly and impliedly
represented to the State, to other tribes, and to the voters of Arizona that the Compacts
would not authorize any tribe, including the Nation, to open a casino in the Phoenix area.

33. On election day 2002, Proposition 202 was adopted by the voters.

Proposition 201 was defeated.

1635379 7
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34. The State and other tribes relied on the Nation’s representation that the
Compacts would not allow another casino in the Phoenix area in supporting and advocating
for the passage of Proposition 202 and in entering into the Compacts.

35.  None of the Compacts became effective until all tribes with gaming facilities
in Maricopa, Pima or Pinal Counties had their new Compacts approved by the Secretary.
2002 Compact Section 2(vv)(4).

36. The 2002 Compacts were amended in 2008, but those amendments do not

relate to the issues in this case.

1.  THE NATION’S APPLICATION TO HAVE PARCEL 2
TAKEN INTO TRUST FOR GAMING ACTIVITIES

37. The Nation had a secret plan to build a casino in the Phoenix area

notwithstanding its vocal support of Proposition 202 and its entering into the 2002
Compact.

38.  Within months of the passage of Proposition 202, in August 2003 the Nation
purchased approximately 135 acres of land at 91st and Northern Avenues, in Glendale,
Arizona (the “Glendale Property”). The Glendale Property includes Parcel 2.

39. The purchase of the Glendale Property was made through a Delaware
corporation called “Rainier Resources, Inc.” that is wholly owned by the Nation. Rainier
Resources, Inc. acquired title in fee simple. The Nation structured the transaction in this
manner to conceal its ownership of the property.

40.  The Nation kept its ownership of the Glendale Property secret for more than
five years. During that time, a public high school was opened across the street from the
site. Restaurants, hotels, and retail establishments were developed, all without the
knowledge that the Tribe had future plans to establish an Indian reservation and develop
Indian gaming in the neighborhood.

41.  On January 20, 2009, Rainier Resources, Inc. conveyed the fee title to the

Nation.

1635379 8
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42.  OnJanuary 27, 2009, the Nation’s Legislative Council passed Resolution No.
09-049, which states in part:

BE IT ... RESOLVED that the Tohono O’odham Legislative
Council hereby requests that the Office of Indian Gaming of the
Department ot the Interior issue an opinion that the Settlement
Property was acquired under the settlement of a land claim, and
thus is excepted from IGRA’s general prohibition on gaming on
lands acquired after the date of enactment of IGRA.

43.  On January 28, 2009, the Nation filed an application asking Interior to take
the Glendale Property in trust for the benefit of the Nation pursuant to the Gila Bend Act.

44.  The letter conveying the Nation’s fee-to-trust application stated: “The
Nation intends to use portions of the property for gaming purposes pursuant to IGRA.”
The application asserted that gaming would be authorized under an IGRA exception for
land taken into trust as part of “a settlement of a land claim.” 25 U.S.C. § 2719(b)(2)(B)(i).

45.  Interior’s regulations and policies require that a determination under IGRA
must be made before land is taken into trust for the purpose of gaming.

46. The Secretary has the responsibility to enforce IGRA requirements in
conjunction with any decision to take lands into trust for gaming purposes.

47.  Interior and the National Indian Gaming Commission have agreed in a
Memorandum of Understanding, dated January 1, 2009, which was renewed in substantial
part on January 1, 2010, “that whether a tribe meets one of the exceptions in 25 U.S.C. §
2719,” including the “settlement of a land claim” exception, “is a decision made by the
Secretary when he or she decides to take land into trust or restricted fee for gaming.”

48.  In a letter dated July 17, 2009, the Nation purported to withdraw its request
for a gaming determination. At that time and at all times since then, the Nation has openly
acknowledged its continuing intention to use portions of the Glendale Property, including
Parcel 2, for gaming activities.

49. Interior has never issued a gaming determination for either the Glendale

Property or Parcel 2 and has stated that it does not intend to do so.

1635379 9
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V. THE GILA BEND ACT IS NOT THE SETTLEMENT OF A LAND CLAIM
WITHIN THE MEANING OF IGRA

50. The Nation has argued incorrectly that the Gila Bend Act is the

Congressional enactment of a settlement of a “land claim.”

51.  An Indian “land claim,” as Congress intended when it enacted IGRA, is an
Indian tribe’s claim to superior title to land as against a non-Indian entity, whether private
or governmental.

52.  Interior’s regulations define “land claim” for purposes of 25 U.S.C. § 2719 as
“any claim by a tribe concerning the impairment of title or other real property interest or
loss of possession that . . . [i]s in conflict with the right, or title or other real property
interest claimed by an individual or entity (private, public, or governmental).” 25 C.F.R. §
292.2 (emphasis added).

53. The prototypical Indian land claims when Congress enacted IGRA were
claims such as those made by Eastern tribes pursuant to the Indian Nonintercourse Act.
See, title 25, Chapter 19, United States Code. In each instance, a state or other non-Indian
entity acquired title and possession of the Indian land in contravention of federal law. As a
result, the Indian tribes brought actions for the immediate possession of the land and
ejectment of the non-Indian occupants based upon the tribe’s superior title to the land as
recognized and guaranteed by federal law.

54.  Congress settled virtually all of these actions in the 1980s just prior to the
enactment of IGRA.

55. The Gila Bend Act is not a settlement of a land claim because enactment of
the Gila Bend Act did not settle any claim by the Nation to superior title to lands as against
another claimant. The Gila Bend Act established a mechanism that would enable the
Nation to acquire land to replace, on an acre-for-acre basis, the land that was subject to a
flowage easement.

56. In 1950, Congress enacted the Flood Control Act, Pub. L. No. 81-516, 64
Stat. 163, authorizing the construction of the Painted Rock Dam in central Arizona. The

Painted Rock Dam was built ten miles downstream from the Nation’s Gila Bend

1635379 10
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Reservation, which was held in trust by the United States for the benefit of the Nation.
H.R. Rep. No. 99-851 at 4 (1986).

57.  Before completion of the dam, the Army Corps of Engineers (the “Corps”)
repeatedly attempted to obtain a flowage easement over the lands (both Indian trust lands
and non-Indian fee lands) that would be intermittently flooded as a result of the dam’s
construction. Id. at 5. Because the Corps could not reach an agreement with the Nation or
other non-Indian landowners, it eventually instituted condemnation proceedings in federal
district court. Id. Through those proceedings, the Corps obtained a condemnation of fee
title for the non-Indian lands and a flowage easement for the affected Indian and non-
Indian lands pursuant to a 1964 federal court decree. Id.

58. The flowage easement included approximately 7,700 acres of the Nation’s
Gila Bend Reservation, for which the Corps paid $130,000.00 in compensation to the
Nation. Id.

59. In the late 1970s and early 1980s, high rainfall caused repeated flooding
upstream of Painted Rock Dam, “each time resulting in a large standing body of water.” 1d.
“[T]he floodwaters destroyed a 750-acre farm that had been developed at tribal expense
and precluded any economic use of reservation lands.” 1d. at 5-6.

60. In 1981, the Nation petitioned Congress “for a new reservation on lands in
the public domain which would be suitable for agriculture.” Id. at 6

61. In 1986, Congress enacted the Gila Bend Act. Section 4(a) of the Gila Bend
Act provides that, in return for the Nation’s assignment “to the United States [of] all right,
title, and interest of the Tribe in nine thousand eight hundred and eighty acres of land
within the Gila Bend Indian Reservation,” the Secretary would pay the Nation $30 million
(plus accrued interest from the date of the Act’s enactment).

62.  Therefore, the Nation’s claims with respect to the Gila Bend Reservation
were not “in conflict with the right” of the United States to take the land pursuant to the
lawful authority of the Flood Control Acts. Rather, the Gila Bend Act allowed the Nation

to receive additional compensation for land that was lawfully acquired by the United States.
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63. The Nation confirmed this view of the Gila Bend Act when it represented

that the Compact did not allow establishment of a casino in the Phoenix area.

VI. THE NATION’S PLAN TO CONDUCT GAMING IN VIOLATION OF THE
COMPACT

64. The Nation has continued to state publicly that it will commence gaming

activities as soon as Parcel 2 is acquired in trust by the United States.

65. For instance, the Nation has issued press releases, e.g., Press Release,
“Tohono O’0Odham Nation Releases Updated West Valley Resort Renderings” (Jan. 11,
2011)(available at http://www.westvalleyopportunity.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/01/
Press-Release-Tohono-Oodham-Nation-Releases-Updated-West-Valley-Resort-
Renderingsl.pdf), has been quoted in numerous newspaper articles, e.g., Carolyn Dryer,
“Tohono O’odham Council Chairman Norris Confident in Future of Project,” Glendale
Star, Jan. 12, 2011, available at http://www.glendalestar.com/news/article_c4955ee6-1e6f-
11e0-a4fd-001cc4c03286.html; Ned Norris J, Op-Ed, “West Valley Resort Offers
Unprecedented Economic Opportunity,” Ariz. Republic (Nov. 25, 2010)(available at
http://www.azcentral.com/arizonarepublic/opinions/articles/2010/11/25/20101125norris-
tohono26.html), and has updated its website, www.westvalleyopportunity.com, claiming
that it has satisfied all the requirements necessary to conduct gaming and that gaming will
occur as soon as Parcel 2 is acquired in trust.

66. Just last month, the Nation announced a “Phase |I” approach that provides
updated plans and renderings for gaming not on the entire 135 acre as originally planned,
but for immediate gaming on the 54-acre Parcel 2, further signaling its intention to
immediately conduct gaming on Parcel 2. Mike Sunnucks, “Tohono O’odham Update
West-Side Casino Plan,” Phoenix Bus. J. (Jan. 17, 2011)(available at http://www.
bizjournals.com/phoenix/news/2011/01/17/tohono-oodham-update-casino-plan.html).

67. In addition to statements in the press, the Nation has similarly represented in

court filings that an Indian lands opinion on the gaming eligibility of Parcel 2 is only
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“advisory” and that “IGRA does not require the Secretary to issue an Indian lands opinion”
at any point in the land into trust process. Case No. 2:10-cv-01993-DGC, Doc. 98, at 20.

68. The Nation now has no intention of seeking or obtaining an Indian lands
opinion from federal authorities before commencing gaming operations on Parcel 2.

69. The United States takes this point even further by representing that “IGRA
does not require pre-gaming, authorizing determinations (from either the Secretary or the
NIGC) that the subject land is eligible for gaming under § 2719.” Case No. 2:10-cv-
01993-DGC, Doc. 95, at 19.

70.  Moreover, the United States has stated that it may take the land into trust
with only 21 days advance notice, making the prospect of illegal gaming on Parcel 2

imminent.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

BREACH OF THE 2002 TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION-STATE OF ARIZONA
GAMING COMPACT

71.  The Community realleges and incorporates the preceding paragraphs.

72.  Parcel 2 does not qualify under 25 U.S.C. 8 2719 for gaming activities, and
therefore the Compact requires the Nation not to conduct such activities on Parcel 2.

73.  The Nation has repeatedly and unequivocally represented publicly and in
federal court that it intends to conduct gaming activities on Parcel 2 as soon as the land is
in trust, in violation of the Compact and 25 U.S.C. § 2719. In so doing it has repudiated its
obligations under the Compact not to conduct such gaming on such lands.

74.  The Nation has repeatedly and unequivocally represented publicly and in
federal court that it does not intend to seek authorization pursuant to 25 U.S.C. § 2719 for
gaming on the Glendale property or Parcel 2.

75.  The Nation previously represented that it did not view the Compact as
permitting establishment of another casino in the Phoenix area, and the parties to the
Compacts relied on that representation in entering into the Compacts, just as the voters

relied on those representations in authorizing the Compacts.
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76.  The Nation’s statements are an unequivocal repudiation of its obligations

under the Compact not to conduct gaming activities on such lands.

77.  The United States has represented in court that it does not intend to require
the Nation to seek authorization pursuant to 25 U.S.C. § 2719 for gaming on the Glendale
property or Parcel 2.

78.  The Glendale Property, including Parcel 2, is ineligible for gaming activities
under 25 U.S.C. § 2719, and thus gaming on the Glendale Property violates the Compact.

79.  The Nation is liable for breach and repudiation of the Compact.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

INJUNCTION TO PREVENT VIOLATION OF THE COMPACT BETWEEN THE
NATION AND THE STATE OF ARIZONA ENTERED INTO
UNDER THE INDIAN GAMING REGULATORY ACT

80. Illegal gaming activity by the Nation on Parcel 2 is now imminent absent

injunctive relief preventing such activity. The very commencement of such activity would
forever alter the character and carefully orchestrated development of the residential
community in which Parcel 2 is located. Further, it would destroy the delicate balance of
interests embodied in Proposition 202 and the parity among tribes embodied in the
Compacts, destabilizing the political relationships among the tribes and between the tribes
and the State.

81.  Neither plaintiff has an adequate remedy at law for illegal gaming on Parcel 2.
The State has an interest in preventing illegal gaming activities to preserve the quality of
life in residential neighborhoods that goes well beyond any merely pecuniary interest. The
State and the Community both have an immeasurable interest in the political compromise
among tribes and the State embodied in the Compacts, and continued violation of the
Compact by the Nation will destroy that delicate balance approved by voters. Moreover,
even if the harms caused by ongoing illegal gaming could be remedied by money alone,
multiple suits would be required to remedy that ongoing harm.

82. The Nation has no legitimate interest in conducting gaming activities on

Parcel 2 and therefore can suffer no cognizable hardship from an injunction. Both the

1635379 14




© 00 ~N o o b~ O w NP

N NN N D NN N DN P PR R R R R R R e
oo N o o B~ W N PP O © 00 N OO 0o hd wWwoN B+ o

Case 2:11-cv-00296-NVW Document 1 Filed 02/14/11 Page 15 of 16

Compact and IGRA made clear to the Nation long before it purchased Parcel 2 that illegal
gaming activity can be enjoined by this Court. Both the State and the Community would
suffer irreversible hardship by having illegal gaming proceed unchecked on Parcel 2 and by
having the heavily negotiated, voter-approved, and highly regulated balance of gaming
facilities in Arizona disrupted.

83.  The plaintiffs are entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive relief
prohibiting the Nation from ever conducting gaming on the Glendale Property or Parcel 2
because the land does not satisfy Section 3(j)(1) of the Compact and is not authorized by
Section 3(p).

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, in accordance the Compact and the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act,
25 U.S.C. 8 2710(d)(7)(A)(ii), the Plaintiffs seek:

1. A finding that gaming on the Glendale Property, including Parcel 2, is
prohibited by the Compact and does not satisfy 25 U.S.C. § 2719;

2. A finding that the Tohono O’odham Nation has breached and repudiated the
Compact;

3. An injunction prohibiting the Nation from conduct gaming activities on the

Glendale Property or Parcel 2;

4. An award to the Plaintiffs of their reasonable attorneys’ fees;
5. All other costs and fees as allowed by law; and
6. Such other and additional relief as the Court deems just and equitable.

DATED this 14th day of February 2011.

Thomas C. Horne (#002951)
Attorney General

/s/ Michael Tryon

Michael Tryon (#003109?

Senior Litigation Counse

Attorneys for Plaintiff the State of Arizona
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Linus Everling, General Counsel (# 019760)
GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY

James P. Tuite (Pro Hac Vice application forthcoming)

Merrill C. Godfrety (Pro Hac Vice application
orthcoming)

Jason T. Hauter (# 022188)

AKIN GUMP STRAUSS HAUER & FELD LLP

/s/ Brian J. Schulman
Brian J. Schulman (# 015286)
GREENBERG TRAURIG LLP

Attorneys for Plaintiff Gila River Indian Community
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